
TOWN OF STRATHAM 
 INCORPORATED 1716 

 
10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE • STRATHAM NH 03885 

 
VOICE (603) 772-7391 • FAX (603) 775-0517 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO: Michael Houghton, Select Board Chair 
 Allison Knab, Select Board Vice Chair 
 Joe Anderson, Select Board 
 
FROM: David Moore, Town Administrator 
 
DATE: December 29, 2023 
 
RE: Select Board Agenda and Materials for the January 2nd Regular Meeting 
 
 
Please allow this memorandum to serve as a guide to the Select Board Meeting agenda for 
Tuesday, January 2, 2024.  
 
III. Consideration of Minutes from December 18, 2023 
 
IV. Finance Report (second meeting of the month) 
 
V. Department Reports & Presentations 
 

1. Whitney Consulting Group – Discussion of 2024 Revaluation and General Assessing 
Services Contract 

 
VI. Correspondence 

 
VII. Public Comment 
 
VIII. Public Hearings, Ordinances and/or Resolutions 
  
IX. Discussion of Monthly Reports – (second meeting of the Month) 
 
X. New Business and Action Items 

A.  2024 Holiday Schedule 
 B.  Town Meeting preparations 



C.  Contract extension with Underwood Engineers for Phase 2 Long-Term PFAS Town 
Center Study. 

 
XI. Town Administrator Report 
 
I will present developments associated with open items and other business of the Town.  If any 
Board member has a specific request of an item I cover at the meeting, I welcome hearing from 
you at any time. 
 
XII. Informational Items 

A. ISO – BCEGS Correspondence  
  
Thank you to Mark Connors for getting this extensive survey work completed 
despite the transition in Building Inspection.  The surveys and leg work associated 
with participating in this assessment traditionally fall to building inspectors with the 
support of the administration and Mark ensured this product stayed on track 
throughout. 

 
XIII. Reservations, Event Requests & Permits 
 
XIV. Review of Recent or Upcoming Board & Commissions Agendas 
  
XV.  Boards and Commissions Nominations & Appointments 
 

A.  Appointments for consideration:  None 
 
B.  Appointments to be voted on:   

 
XVI. Miscellaneous & Old Business 
 
XVII. Adjournment 



TOWN OF STRATHAM 
 INCORPORATED 1716 

 
10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE • STRATHAM NH 03885 

 
VOICE (603) 772-7391 • FAX (603) 775-0517 

 
 

The Select Board reserves the right to take up business in any order deemed appropriate by the Chair.  A motion to 
enter Non-Public Session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3 may occur at any time during the meeting.  Submission of 
items to be placed on the Agenda must be to the Town Administrator by 4 pm the Wednesday before the scheduled 
meeting. 

SELECT BOARD AGENDA 
JANUARY 2, 2024 
7:00 P.M. Public  

 

Hutton Room, Stratham Municipal Center 
10 Bunker Hill Avenue, Stratham, NH 03885 

 
This meeting of the Select Board will be held in the Hutton Room of the Stratham Municipal 
Center 
 
The public may access this meeting at the date and time above using this conference call 
information.  Please dial the conference number (877) 205-7349 and input 2254 when 
prompted for a user pin/code. 
 
If at any time during the meeting you have difficulty hearing the proceedings, please e-mail 
dmoore@strathamnh.gov. 
 
To access materials related to this meeting, please see this link:  
https://www.strathamnh.gov/select-board 

 

I. Call to order 
 
II. Roll Call 
 
III. Consideration of Minutes  12/18/23 
 
IV. Finance Report (second meeting of the month) 
  
V. Department Reports & Presentations 
 A.  Assessing and 2024 Revaluation – Whitney Consulting Group 
 
VI. Correspondence 
 
VII. Public Comment 
 
VIII. Public Hearings, Ordinances and/or Resolutions 
 
IX. Discussion of Monthly Reports – (second meeting of the Month)  

https://www.strathamnh.gov/select-board


TOWN OF STRATHAM 
INCORPORATED 1716 

 
10 BUNKER HILL AVENUE • STRATHAM NH 03885 

 
VOICE (603) 772-7391 • FAX (603) 775-0517 

 
 

 
X. New Business and Action Items 

A.  Adoption of 2024 Holidays 
B.  Town Meeting Preparations 
C.  Contract extension with Underwood Engineers for Phase 2 Long-Term PFAS Town 

Center Study. 
 

XI. Town Administrator Report 
  
XII. Informational Items 
 A.  ISO – BCEGS Correspondence 
 
XIII. Reservations, Event Requests & Permits 

 
XIV. Review of Recent or Upcoming Board & Commissions Agendas 
 
XV.  Boards and Commissions Nominations & Appointments 
 

A.  Appointments for consideration:  None for this meeting 
B.  Appointments to be voted on:    

 
XVI. Miscellaneous & Old Business 
 
XVII. Adjournment 



MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 18, 2023 SELECT BOARD MEETING 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Board Members Chair Mike Houghton, Vice Chair Allison Knab; Joe 
Anderson  
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Town Administrator David Moore 
 
At 7:00 pm Mr. Houghton opened the meeting and asked for a motion on the minutes.  Ms. Knab 
motioned approval of the minutes of Dec. 4th as written.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  
All voted in favor. 
 
Mr. Houghton asked for comments on the Correspondence and Informational items.  Hearing 
none, he motioned to open the public hearing.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  All voted in 
favor.  Mr. Moore reminded the Board that a donation check was presented at the last meeting.  
A memo that explains the intent of the donor was included in the packet.  He then described the 
Board’s role in how the funds are used.  Mr. Houghton asked for comments.  The Board 
members supported the continued use of the funds as they’d been proposed in the past.  Mr. 
Houghton motioned to close the public hearing.  Ms. Knab seconded the motion.  All voted in 
favor.  Mr. Houghton motioned to accept the funds donated from the Stratham Volunteer Fire 
Dept. Association.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
Mr. Houghton recognized Keith Pratt, President of Underwood Engineers.  Mr. Moore stated that 
the town has received a second phase grant from DES in the amount of $50,000.  It is 100% 
funded (no local match).  These funds were accepted by the Board earlier in the year.  Mr. Pratt 
informed the Board about how our project fits into the State’s bigger picture.  He gave 
background on Stratham’s PFAS issues.  The State is using ARPA funds to do a regional water 
study to find connections and solutions.  Underwood was chosen as the state’s contractors.  
Stratham has the biggest population that is without municipal water.  Underwood will be talking 
to community leaders, giving them an opportunity to be engaged in finding solutions.  
Willingness, cost, distance, feasibility and governance will all play a role in with whom we 
partner.  They discussed our history with exploring, researching, and designing an Exeter 
connection.  Mr. Moore discussed public outreach.  Much of the time will be spent on municipal 
agreement discussion and effort; engineering is the easier part.  The State’s primary concern was 
emergency supply, but it is also making an effort to reduce community water systems which 
have lower quality and are unreliable.  Mr. Pratt will pace our project behind the State project.  
He will see how that’s developing and help Stratham fit into one of their solutions.  The seacoast, 
ironically, doesn’t have a lot of water.  The group discussed the conversations taking place re: 
water supply sources 50 years in the future. 
 
Mr. Pratt requested the Board sign the contract soon so that they could start in January.  He 
recommends asking the State for an extension with the grant agreement to allow Underwood to 
do their work at a pace to coincide with the State study.  The Board decided to sign the contract 
with Underwood at the next meeting in January.  Mr. Pratt will send along the State contract with 
Underwood when it is signed.  The Board thanked him for the update and for coming in. 
 



Select Board Meeting December 18, 2023 Page 2 of 3 

Mr. Houghton moved to the Parks & Recreation request under New Business for a van.  Ms. 
Knab motioned to authorize the Parks & Recreation Director to move forward with his purchase 
of the van as outlined in his Dec 15, 2023 memo for an amount up to $67,553.00 with the source 
funding coming from the Transportation Fund, the Rec Revolving Fund and the proceeds of the 
Great Bay Food Truck Festival.  The vote included a release of $15,000 from the Municipal 
Transportation Improvement Fund, of which the Select Board are the agents to expend.  Mr. 
Anderson seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
Next Mr. Houghton called attention to the encumbrances.  Mr. Moore reported that Ms. 
McAllister had prepared a group of encumbrances which she recommends you vote to approve.  
They had been discussed at a previous Select Board meeting.  They discussed the balances.  Mr. 
Moore reported that Ms. McAllister is suggesting they encumber $14,000 for the Gifford Barn 
preservation project; $23,155 for FB Environmental Associates for the MS4 professional 
services; $623 for fire gear; and $47,900 from the donation for other fire gear; [later in the 
meeting the Board approved encumbering $10,000 in CIP funds for library carpeting].  Ms. Knab 
motioned to encumber the four items listed:  Gifford Barn preservation project, FB 
Environmental Associates for the open space project and the two amounts for fire gear.  Mr. 
Houghton seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
Mr. Houghton turned to the Town Administrator report.  Mr. Moore compiled a report for the 
Town’s rental units.  He has contacted each of the tenants to let them know who to contact in an 
emergency and non-emergency situations.   
 
Financial Advisory Committee update.  Mr. Anderson reported that the School’s budget has an 
increase over last year.  Much of the increase is due to the proposal of a new position with a 
salary of $90,000 plus benefits, the FAC and Committee’s work is not yet completed. 
 
Mr. Moore reported that a resident reached out regarding the Purple Heart signs contending that 
one of the signs is not on its own post as it should be.  Mr. Moore is looking into it. 
 
New employee event will be moved to January 10.  The Budget Advisory Committee meeting 
will be on Monday, January 8th at 7:00 pm. 
 
Community Power Coalition of NH communications will go out towards the end of January.  On 
January 30th there will be a public forum on the program.  Mr. Anderson is the authorized 
representative.  They discussed the rates. 
 
Ms. Knab noted form the Police Department monthly report the Animal Control Officer has 
resigned  
 
INFORMATIONAL 
Mr. Houghton noted that the draft warrant articles were mostly housekeeping around zoning.  
Mr. Moore highlighted the article regarding installation of solar panels.  The Planning Board is 
recommending that free standing solar projects that meet certain criteria be allowed to move 
forward without appearing before them.  Mr. Moore reminded the Board of a broader discussion 



Select Board Meeting December 18, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

about a general approach to solar projects in Stratham that the Planning Board would have with 
interested parties.  Mr. Connors will ensure the Energy Commission is aware that this is moving 
forward.  There will be two Public Hearings in January on it.  
 
RESERVATIONS 
Ms. Knab motioned approval for Jay Flagg to use Room A on January 25th for a pickle ball pot 
luck and to waive the alcohol prohibition.  Mr. Houghton seconded the motion.  All voted in 
favor. 
 
Mr. Houghton motioned approval for the Fireworks permit for the Lights 4 Lives Committee.  
Ms. Knab seconded the motion.  All voted in favor. 
 
Mr. Houghton moved to the budget workshop discussion.  Mr. Moore noted this is a starting 
point for the budget.  He gave a top level review of our current status explaining the increases.  
They discussed items that could be removed or lowered to reduce the CIP.  Noticing the decrease 
in solid waste, they wondered if Casella might be able to provide insight on the trends they are 
seeing.  They discussed the ballot machines.  Mr. Moore noted the State is looking into new 
machines and Deborah Bakie, Town Clerk / Tax Collector is recommending them.  He will 
remove them from the CIP.  In reviewing the Fire Dept. vehicle budget, they noted Chief Denton 
had referred to the age of the fleet.  Mr. Moore observed that the Fire Dept. always has funds left 
at the end of the year.  There is also funds in the Capital Reserve Funds for Fire.  They 
questioned the increase in the DPW budget for salaries.  They discussed the use of the ARPA 
funds.  It was decided that would be a larger project than it would initially appear.  They agreed 
the remaining ARPA funds should be used on non-recurring expenses.  Town buildings have 
needs that are to be addressed.  The proposed library renovations would be a good use of the 
funds.  Mr. Moore reminded them that this is a reval year and we have new assessors starting in 
January.  Because of that, it will be more difficult to project a tax rate.  
 
At 8:35 pm Mr. Houghton motioned to go into a non-public session in accordance with RSA 91-
A:3, II (a) to discuss compensation.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  Roll call:  Houghton-
yes; Knab-yes; Anderson-yes 
 
At 9:40 pm Mr. Houghton motioned to exit the non-public session and seal the minutes noting 
failure to do so may render a proposed action invalid.  Ms. Knab seconded the motion.  All voted 
in favor.  At 9:41 pm Mr. Houghton motioned to adjourn.  Ms. Knab seconded the motion.  All 
voted in favor. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Richard 
Recording Secretary 
 















































 

2024 Holiday Schedule 
 
 

The schedule identifies the dates that annual holidays included in the Town’s employment 
manual will be observed.   

 
 
New Year’s Day    Monday   January 1, 2024 
 
 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day   Monday   January 15, 2024 
 
 
Presidents Day    Monday   February 19, 2024 
 
 
Memorial Day     Monday   May 27, 2024 
 
 
Independence Day    Thursday   July 4, 2024 
 
 
Labor Day     Monday   September 2, 2024 
 
 
Columbus Day    Monday   October 14, 2024 
 
 
Veterans Day      Monday   November 11, 2024 
 
Thanksgiving Day    Thursday   November 28, 2024 
Day following Thanksgiving1   Friday    November 29, 2024 
(Town offices closed/vacation day taken) 
 
Christmas Day     Wednesday   December 25, 2024 

                                                 
1 The Municipal Center is closed to the Public on the Friday following Thanksgiving. In accordance with the Town 
of Stratham Employment Manual, if you wish to take this day off, personal or vacation time must be used. 



Page 1 of 3 

12/27/2023 

Town of Stratham, NH 

 

 

Underwood Engineers, Inc.                                                                                                                                                                                                             

G:\PROJECTS\STRATHAM, NH\REALNUM\2757 - PFAS Long Term Alternatives Analysis\Contract\Amendment 3\2757 Strategic 

planning grant scope - Stratham 12-27-23.docx                                    Page 1 of 3 
 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN PHASE  

PFAS Contamination - Engineering Evaluation 

 

Town of Stratham, New Hampshire 

April 5, 2023 (updated December 27, 2023) 

 

PROJECT BACKGROUND 

The goal of this project is to develop a long-term solution to the PFAS contamination issues in the 

Town Center, while also considering the Town of Stratham’s other long term environmental, 

community planning, and infrastructure goals. 

 

PFAS has been detected in monitoring wells and in private wells within the Town of Stratham. A 

contamination source is the Stratham Fire Department property at 4 Winnicutt Road. A Remedial 

Action Plan (RAP) submitted to NHDES by Wilcox & Barton, Inc. (April 7, 2021) recommended 

continued monitoring of groundwater and drinking water and installation of Point-Of-Entry (POE) 

systems at each affected residence until a long-term solution can be found. These POE systems 

have been installed per their recommendation; however ongoing water monitoring may require 

additional systems to be installed. 

 

The Town retained Underwood Engineers (UE) to assess alternatives that provide a long-term 

solution and identify next steps.  The focus was to solve the PFAS issues but also to consider other 

supply needs and long-term economic and infrastructure goals. The Interim Technical 

Memorandum dated June 1, 2022 identified improvements needed to support sustainable long-

term water supplies for the Town’s current and future needs. Drinking water well sampling was 

conducted in June and July 2022 throughout the Town in order to refine recommendations. The 

results were detailed in a letter dated August 25, 2022.  

 

The recommendation is to implement regional interconnections with a neighboring community. 

This was recommended over non-regional alternatives due to numerous factors including future 

water demand, operating and maintenance costs, and stable water quality. There is currently no 

confirmation on the community to which Stratham will connect, however preliminary discussions 

have been occurring since the Interim Technical Memorandum was issued. Further study is needed 

to refine the scope and costs of the project before proceeding with final design.  

 

  



Page 2 of 3 

4/12/2023 

Town of Stratham, NH 

 

 

Underwood Engineers, Inc.                                                                                                                                                                                                             

G:\PROJECTS\STRATHAM, NH\REALNUM\2757 - PFAS Long Term Alternatives Analysis\Contract\Amendment 3\2757 Strategic 

planning grant scope - Stratham 12-27-23.docx                                    Page 2 of 3 

PROJECT GOALS 

The proposed strategic planning work will allow the Town to plan for implementation by providing 

a clearer picture of the cost-effective improvements and costs for a regional interconnection. 

 

The goals of this project are to: 

• Choose a Regional Partner with which to connect. The following were identified as options 

in the Interim Technical Memorandum: Exeter, Newmarket, Portsmouth, and North 

Hampton (Aquarion Water). 

• Refine the scope of work, costs, and schedule based on the selected Regional Partner. 

• Identify next steps for final design, including hydrological investigations, pilot studies, 

topographical survey, and subsurface investigations. 

Note that the scope of work has been set up with two distinct parts. The first part will be to finalize 

efforts to select the preferred regional partner. Once that has been done, advance the concept to 

update approach and budget. 
 

SCOPE OF WORK  

A qualified consultant (DES list) will complete the strategic planning in accordance with the scope 

of services and conditions set forth in the Strategic Planning Grant approved by Governor and 

Council on TBD (Exhibit “B”) and as follows. 

 

Finalize Regional Partner 

• Coordinate meetings with the potential Regional Partners. 

• Select preferred Regional Partner based on outcome of discussions and cost factors. 

• Develop a suggested memorandum of understanding with cost sharing allocations. 

Regional Interconnection – Conceptual Design 

Following step one, the following will be completed: 

• Refine project goals and create a vision statement. 

• Review hydraulic grade line information for the Town and the Regional Partner. 

• Refine the scope and costs of improvements needed, including a booster pump station, 

water main, and water storage tank. 

• Establish a Basis of Design for the necessary infrastructure. 

• Update opinion of project costs to support the CIP and funding applications.  

• Identify future cadastral work and easements or land acquisition needed. 

• Summarize findings and recommendations in a technical memorandum.  

• Identify next steps for final design, including hydrogeological investigations, pilot studies, 

topographical survey, and subsurface investigations. 

• Identify funding alternatives and schedule for implementation. 

• Submit draft memorandum to Town and State for review. 

• Submit final memorandum to Town and State pending incorporation of comments. 



Page 3 of 3 

4/12/2023 

Town of Stratham, NH 

 

 

Underwood Engineers, Inc.                                                                                                                                                                                                             

G:\PROJECTS\STRATHAM, NH\REALNUM\2757 - PFAS Long Term Alternatives Analysis\Contract\Amendment 3\2757 Strategic 

planning grant scope - Stratham 12-27-23.docx                                    Page 3 of 3 

MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS 

Coordinate and attend meetings as follows:  

• One (1) kick-off meeting with Town staff and NHDES. The focus of this meeting will be 

to:  

o Review projected goals. 

o Develop a summary vision statement for the work.  

o Identify information needed. 

• Two (2) meetings with Regional Partners to present project. 

• Two (2) additional meetings with preferred Regional Partner. 

• Coordinate and conduct “standing meetings” online at a frequency appropriate for the 

phase of the work. It is anticipated that these meetings would be conducted 1 to 2 times per 

month during the work and are intended to be online, informal check-ins for 30 minutes or 

less.  

 

SUMMARY OF DELIVERABLES 

The following suggested deliverables will be provided:  

• Memorandum of Understanding between the Town and preferred Regional Partner. 

• Meeting notes. 

• Opinions of costs. 

• Technical Memorandum summarizing findings, conclusions, and recommendations of the 

work.  

• Work Plans at an appropriate scale to show the overall scope of recommended work.  

• All deliverables will be available in electronic format and as bound copies.  

 

WORK NOT INCLUDED 

• Topographic survey. 

• Hydraulic investigations and fieldwork. 

• Boundary survey, easements, definitive ROW determinations or resolution of boundary 

disputes. 

• Subsurface investigations. 

• Final design services. 

• Construction phase services. 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

G:\PROJECTS\STRATHAM, NH\REALNUM\2757 - PFAS Long Term Alternatives Analysis\Contract\Amendment 3\Stratham Amendment 12-27-23.doc 12/27/23 

Amendment No. 3 
 

Contract for Professional Engineering Services 

Town of Stratham, NH 
 

 
WHEREAS, an AGREEMENT made and entered into at Rockingham County, New 

Hampshire, on the 9th day of November, 2021, by and between the Town of Stratham 
hereinafter called the OWNER, and Underwood Engineers, Inc. hereinafter called the 
CONSULTANT for engineering work and 
 

WHEREAS, the contract requires a change in scope consisting of additional planning and 
preliminary engineering services, refer to the attached Scope of Services labeled as Exhibit ‘A’ 
(3 pages). This work is being funded by a grant approved by Governor and Council on August 
2nd, 2023.   

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreement an amendment is hereby agreed to by 
the OWNER and the CONSULTANT as follows: 
 
A. That the time of completion in Paragraph B. on page 1 be amended to extend the time for 

services through December 13, 2023. 
             
 
B. That the compensation to the Consultant for services be amended as follows:  

 
Prior budget (tasks 1-4) $67,900 
This Amendment #3  $50,000 
Total Revised Contract Value $117,900 

  
 

The OWNER and the CONSULTANT hereby agree to this Amendment. 
 
CONSULTANT:  Underwood Engineers, Inc.  OWNER*:  Town of Stratham 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
By:  Keith A. Pratt, P.E. (NH, ME, MA)   By:   David Moore 
 President       Town Administrator 
 
Date: _________________     Date: _________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

December 27, 2023







































1000 Bishops Gate Blvd., Suite 300
Mt.  Laurel, NJ 08054

tel. 1 800 444-4554

December 19, 2023

Mr. Mark Connors, Planning & Community Development Director 
Stratham
10 Bunker Hill Avenue
Stratham, NH 03885

RE:  Building Code Effectiveness Grading Schedule Results
Stratham, Rockingham County, NH

Dear Mr. Connors:

We wish to thank you for your cooperation during our recent survey. We have completed our analysis of the building 
codes adopted by your community and the efforts put forth to properly enforce those codes. The resulting Building 
Code Effectiveness Grading Classification is 05 for 1 and 2 family residential property and 04 for commercial and 
industrial property. Attached you will find a customized report showing the outcomes and performance of your 
department in the last survey. This report is provided for your use as a management tool.

ISO’s primary mission is providing advisory insurance underwriting and rating information to insurers. There is no 
requirement that insurers use our advisory material. Insurers may have adopted, or may be in the process of 
adopting, an ISO insurance rating program that will provide rating credits to individual property insurance policies in 
recognition of community efforts to mitigate property damage due to natural disasters. These insurers may use the 
Building Code Effectiveness Grading Classification we have recently developed for your community as a basis for 
the credits used. While individual insurers may use different credits or different effective dates, the ISO program will 
apply credits to new construction within Stratham that has been issued a Certificate of Occupancy in the year of 
publication and forward.

BCEGS classifications range from 1-10 with a Class 1 representing exemplary commitment to building code 
enforcement. A classification of 99 indicates that a particular aspect of a community’s building code enforcement 
program does not meet the minimum requirements of the BCEGS Schedule to receive a classification of 1-10. The 
BCEGS Schedule requires that a jurisdiction adopts building codes, conducts plan review, conducts inspections, and 
provides for staff training.

Moving forward, if you make any substantial changes or improvements to your building code enforcement 
department, you are encouraged to contact us for a resurvey. We will be pleased to work with you to reflect any 
positive changes that have been instituted.

If you have any questions about the Classification that was developed, please let us know within the next thirty days.

Sincerely,

Sarah Brewer
Cell Phone: (603) 748-3428 
Sarah.Brewer@verisk.com 
www.isomitigation.com

cc: Mr. David Moore, Town Administrator
Stratham
10 Bunker Hill Avenue 
Stratham, NH 03885

Enclosure


	SB Memo 1 2 2024
	sb AGENDA 1 2 2024
	12 18 2023 sb minutes - dm
	2024 Holiday Schedule
	2757 Strategic planning grant scope - Stratham 12-27-23
	Stratham Amendment #3 12-27-23
	Informational-61117 Stratham, NH Final DSR
	Informational-61117 Stratham, NH Final Letter 12R



